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Cover photo: Harry Baum and Tommy McGinty
instructing students in stick gambling.

Inset photo: This copper arrow point was excavated
[from Fort Selkirk.

This publication has been reprinted with funding from the
Historic Places Initiative programme
of the Government of Yukon

Tourism and Culture












Elders Harry Bawm and Tommy McGinty telling
stories at Fort Selkirk. Students (I-r): Darren Johnny,
Bernice fohnny, Eugene Alfred and David Grennan.
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he first Selkirk people left no written

records, no stone monuments, but

aspects of their history may still be found
in remains of their ancient camps preserved in
the ground, and in the oral traditions of today.
A small part of that history is told here, drawn
from several generations of archaeologists and
the many generations of Elders who have
passed down to us their knowledge of the past.

Very little is known about the first

inhabitants of central Yukon. Traces of ancient
living sites and fragments of stone tools dating
back to the earliest days are rare. At present,
the oldest, nearby evidence comes from 60
miles to the northeast, where a tool made
from caribou antler has been dated at 11,300
years old. This confirms that people were
living and hunting in central Yukon alongside

woolly mammoths, bison and horses.

Generations of Knowledge

Throughout most of central Yukon, the
glacial ice had probably melted by 10,000
years ago. Over the next two thousand years,
the massive glacial lakes drained and forests

slowly became re-established.




People of the Long Spear

rchaeologists call the earliest
recognized stone tool tradition in
central Yukon the Northern

Cordilleran, after the mountain ranges where
they were first found. Little evidence of these
first people remains except for their distinctive
stone tools, such as large chipped stone spear
points, tools made from large blades of stone
and burins (probably used for shaving or
whittling bone and antler). From the
meagerness of their sites, it seems that
Northern Cordilleran people travelled light,
made only small camps and moved often.







Students carrying out test excavations at the
microblade site upriver of the Fort Selkirk townsite.
Thi Ts® ach’dn 7s in the background.




Abave from left to right:

Gravers made on stone flakes from the microblade site near Fort Selkirk. The
small spurs or projections on the stone flakes were used for incising and carving
bone and antler.

Two burins from the microblade site near Fort Selkirk. Burins were used for

shaving and whittling pieces of bone, antler and wood to make tools.












Opposite page: A collection of copper arrow points.
The point on the far right is chipped stone. The point
on the far left was excavated from Fort Selkirk.

Left: Tommy McGinty demonstrating the proper use
of the traditional bow and arrow, while Harry

Baum, George Magrum and Darren Johnny look on.
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.| obert Campbell was the first
\ : European to encounter the Selkirk

.. people when he journeyed down the
Pelly River in 1843. At this late date, the
Selkirk territory was one of the last places in
North America to be visited by European
explorers. Campbell’s journals provide the
earliest written account of the Selkirk people,
who he called Gens de Bois (People of the
Forest) or Lewes River Indians.

Elders tell us that the Selkirk people used
to call themselves in the Northern
Tutchone language Thi Tsachiin
Huch éin, after the name of their
former king salmon fish camp at
Victoria Rock (7hf Tsachiin). The
Selkirk people were one of the
eleven Northern Tutchone bands

or local groups, for which the

headquarters were located at
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[raditional History

Tatlmain Lake, Stewart
River, lower Macmillan
River, Aishihik Lake,
Hutshi Lake, White River,
Braeburn Lake, Tatchun
Lake, Lictle Salmon and
Big Salmon Rivers.

Like other Yukon
native groups, the Selkirk
people followed a seasonal

round of hunting, fishing

and gathering activities.

Their traditional territories extended from the shifted as well. Around the turn of the century,
Yukon River west to the Dawson Range, and Tht Ts achin (Victoria Rock), located about
up the lower Pelly to the South Macmillan two kilometres below Fort Selkirk, was the
River. The main fish camps of the Selkirk main king (chinook) salmon fishing camp,
people were located above and below Fort where people would gaff fish from the rocks
Selkirk and on the Pelly River. Through the in the river. Fort Selkirk itself was once an
years, as the channels of the rivers changed, important salmon camp for both king and
however, the location of these camps has dog (chum) salmon before the channel















! A : - e M v One of the large hammerstones found at Three Way
Collection of poles under a tree, uncovered at the fish Channel. All of the hammerstones had this
trap site ar Three Way Channel, characteristic shape.



The village at Three Way Channel was
abandoned almost a century ago, probably as
a result of a sudden shift in the course of the
Yukon River which left the slough too dry for
fishing.

No evidence of brush camps or other
structures was found, but according to Selkirk
Elders the island floods frequently, and most
of the island was logged earlier in the century
to provide wood for the steamboats. Anything
that had been standing would have been
destroyed either by flooding or logging.

The recovered artifacts —

were found on a
portion of the
island chat
appears not to

have been logged.
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Above: Stanley Johnathan making a replica of a fish basket.
L—R: David Grennan, Darren Johnny, Greg Hare and Eugene Alfred,




Traditional Territories of the Selkirk Huch'an
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One of the most interesting features of

the Fort Selkirk site collections is the presence

of twenty-cight different kinds of stone that
people were using for their tools and
implements. Many of these, highly prized for

their colour and quality, cannot be found

locally. These include obsidian (volcanic
glass) and many exotic cherts, chalcedonies
and agates. Several pieces of native copper
were also found, including the stemmed
copper point, and fragments of copper sheet

left from the manufacture of copper tools.

Lefi: A stone knife uncovered during the reconstruc-

tion of Big fohnathan’s house at Fort Selkirk.
Above: A large stone chapper excavated from the Late
Prehistoric levels at Fort Selkirk.






he written history of Fort Selkirk

begins with arrival of the Hudson’s Bay

Company at the confluence of the
Yukon and Pelly Rivers in 1848. Remote from
supply centres on the Mackenzie River and, as
a consequence, always short of items for trade,
the Fort Selkirk post made very little impact
on the material culture of the Selkirk people.
The appearance of a new trading interest in
the region, however, was of serious concern to
the Coast Chilkat, who had a long established
trade with the Selkirk people.

When Robert Campbell moved his post

to the present location of Fort Selkirk in
1851, the Chilkat traders’ tolerance of his
competition in the trade with Selkirk people
came to an end. In 1852, a group of Chilkat
Indians, led by chief Kohklux, raided and
pillaged the post at Fort Selkirk, forcing
Campbell and his men to flee. When he

Summer residents watching boats arriving at Fort Selkirk.





















Danny Roberts, one of the last residents of Fort
Selkirk and now caretaker of the town site greets a

young visitor to the site.
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